IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 06-2353

JOEL DALE WRIGHT,

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT,
IN AND FOR PUTNAM COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

MARTIN J. MCCLAIN Special Assistant CCRC-South Florida Bar No. 0754773 141 N.E. 30th Street Wilton Manors, FL 33334 (305) 984-8344

NEAL DUPREE CCRC-South 101 NE 3rd Ave., Suite 400 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 (954) 713-1284

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Lima Page Smith was found stabbed to death at 4:15 p.m. on February 6, 1983 (R. 1628). She had twelve stab wounds in the left side of hear face and neck (R. 1739, 1816). Joel Dale Wright lived next door to Ms. Smith with his family (R. 1583). The Wright family had lived next door to Ms. Smith for many years (R. 1583).

Early in the police investigation, Mr. Wright was interviewed. He explained that on the night of the homicide he had been out late playing poker. When he arrived home after midnight, he was locked out. He walked across town to Charles Westberry's house, where he spent the night. Charles Westberry initially confirmed that Mr. Wright arrived at Westberry's house about 1:00 a.m. and spent the early morning hours of February 6th sleeping on Westberry's living room couch (2PC-R. 2520, Douglas Deposition at 34).

¹At trial, the evidence showed Mr. Wright had won about thirty dollars in the poker game (R. 1874).

Denise Easter was sharing a bedroom with Westberry at the trailer, which belonged to Allen Westberry, Charles' brother. She testified at trial that she and Charles had gone to bed around 1:00 a.m. (R. 1925). Charles got up at some point during the night. When Easter awoke the next morning, Mr. Wright was asleep on the living room couch. This was not unusual. Easter observed no blood on Mr. Wright's clothes.

Allen Westberry testified that he saw Mr. Wright on the couch at 7:00 a.m., and Beverly Westberry, Allen's wife, saw Mr. Wright on the couch when she got up at 6:30 a.m. (R. 1946,

Later, while talking to his estranged wife, Paige,
Westberry changed his story. He told Paige that Mr. Wright was
making trouble for him: "he had a lot of nerve to get him in
trouble when Charles said he had enough shit to put him under
the jail." Westberry then claimed that Mr. Wright arrived at
his house much later and confessed to the murder. However, his
description of how Mr. Wright had committed the murder matched
newspaper accounts, not the evidence from the scene. Paige
related this conversation to a deputy sheriff she was dating.
After Westberry was arrested and charged as an accessory to
murder, he agreed to testify against Mr. Wright in return for
immunity (2PC-R. 2415-17). On the basis of Westberry's
testimony, Mr. Wright was convicted and sentenced to death.

On April 22, 1983, Mr. Wright was charged by indictment in Putnam County with one count of first degree murder, one count

^{1957).} Neither noticed anything looking like blood on his clothes.

According to Paige, Westberry reported that Jody had claimed to have used a kitchen knife to slit Ms. Smith's throat. In fact, Ms. Smith had been stabbed twelve times with a pocket knife. Originally, Westberry had told Paige that Mr. Wright had arrived at Westberry's trailer "covered with blood." Westberry had thought Mr. Wright had been in an accident. Westberry had also said that Mr. Wright showed him \$243.00 in small bills. Later, at trial, Westberry reported considerably less blood and claimed Mr. Wright said he got \$290.00 from Ms. Smith's purse as well as a jar of change. Due to the condition of Ms. Smith's house and the maner in which she lived, there was no evidence that a specific amount of money or specific items were missing.

of sexual battery with great force, one count of burglary of a dwelling, and one count of grand theft of the second degree (R. 5). On April 23, 1983, Howard Pearl was appointed to represent Mr. Wright (PC-R2. 2406). The assigned prosecutor was James Dunning. Mr. Wright entered pleas of not guilty on all counts.

Trial began on August 22, 1983, before Judge Robert Perry.

On September 1, 1983, the jury returned guilty verdicts on each count (R. 688).

On September 2, 1983, the penalty phase proceeding began.

Later that same day, the jury returned a recommendation of death. On September 23, 1983, Judge Perry imposed a sentence of death with regard to the murder count, 99 years on the sexual battery, 15 years on the burglary, and 5 years on the grand theft. Judge Perry found four aggravating circumstances: 1) the homicide occurred in the course of a felony; 2) the homicide was committed to avoid arrest; 3) the homicide was especially heinous, atrocious and cruel; 4) the homicide was committed in a cold, calculated and premeditated manner without any pretense of moral justification.

The evidence against Mr. Wright derived from three sources. First, a fingerprint from Mr. Wright was found in Ms. Smith's house. Mr. Wright explained that he wsa her neighbor and had been in the house on numerous occasions. Second, there was the

testimony of Westberry. Third, a police officer, Walter

Perkins, who was involved in Mr. Wright's arrest, testified that

when he was alone with Mr. Wright, Mr. Wright said, "If I

confess to this, I'll die in the electric chair, if I don't talk

I stand a chance of living."

This Court has relied on the following summary of the facts leading to Mr. Wright's convictions and death sentence:

⁴During the winter months prior to Ms. Smith's death, Walter Perkins had become angry with Mr. Wright's mother over her failure to keep Mr. Wright and his brother away from his stepsister. So he told her that he was going to make her sorry that she ever had those two boys (2PC-R. 2587).

On February 6, 1983, a woman was found murdered in the bedroom of her home. She apparently had died the previous night after being raped and stabbed. doors to her home were locked, but a back window was found open. Several weeks later, Charles Westberry told his wife that petitioner Joel Wright had come to Westberry's trailer shortly after daylight on the morning of Febrary 6 and had confessed to killing the victim. Wright lived with his parents near the victim's home. Westberry's wife notified the police, and Wright was arrested and tried for the crime. At trial, Westberry was the State's principal witness. He testified that Wright had told him on the morning of Febrary 6 that Wright had entered the victim'shouse through the back windown to steal money, that the victim had discovered him as he was wiping his fingerprints from her purse, and that he had killed her because he did not want to return to prison. According to Westberry, Wright counted out \$290 he claimed to have taken from the victim's home, and he asked Westberry to tell the authorities that Wright had spent the previous night at Westberry's trailer. Another witness [Paul House] for the State testified that, approximately one month before the murder, he and Wright had stolen money from the victim's home after entering through the window later found open on February 6. The jury also was told that a fingerprint identified as Wright's had been found on a portable stove in the victim's bedroom. Wright took the stand and denied involvement in the

Wright took the stand and denied involvement in the murder. He testified that he had returned home from a party at approximately 1 a.m. on February 6, but had found himself locked out. He claimed that he then had walked along Highway 19 to Westberry's trailer, where he had spent the night. He also presented a witness who testified that, late on the night of February 5 and early in the morning of February 6, he had seen a group of three men, whom he had not recognized, in the general vicinity of the victim's home.

After the close of evidence but prior to final arguments, the defense moved to reopen the case in order to introduce the testimony of a newly discovered witness, Kathy Waters. Waters apparently had read newspaper accounts of the trial, had listened to parts of the testimony, and had discussed the trial with

friends in attendance. She offered to testify that, shortly after midnight on February 6, she had seen a person who could have been Wright walking along Highway 19, and had also observed three persons she did not recognize near the victim's home. Waters claimed that she had not realized she possessed relevant information until the morning her testimony was proffered, and that she had come forward of her own volition.

Wright v. State, 857 So. 2d 861, 865 (Fla. 2003), quoting Wright
v. Florida, 474 U.S. 1094, 1094-95 (1986) (Blackmun, J., joined
by Brennan, J., and Marshall, J., dissenting). Justice Blackmun
also stated, "this case comes down to Wright's word against
Westberry's." Wright v. Florida, 474 U.S. at 1097 (Blackmun,
J., dissenting).

The trial judge denied the defense motion to reopen the case in order to present Waters' testimony. The judge stated that Florida's sequestration rule would be rendered "meaningless" if, after discussing the case with others, a witness were permitted "to testify in support of one side or the other, almost as if that testimony were tailor-made." Wright v. State, 473 So. 2d 1277, 1279 (Fla. 1985).

At trial, the jury did not hear certain impeachment evidence regarding Westberry. Besides the disclosed immunity on the accessory to murder charge, the prosecutor gave Westberry "a limited grant of immunity" regarding the illegal scrap metal business which he and Mr. Wright operated together (PC-R. 756).

Westberry has acknowledged that he was "scared of getting into trouble for this" (PC-R. 652). Because Mrs. Westberry had knowledge of the illegal business, Westberry was worried that she might get into trouble too. This additional immunity was not disclosed to defense counsel (PC-R. 652).

Additionally, in the week or so leading up to Mr. Wright's trial, the prosecutor met with Westberry on a daily basis (PC-R. 756, 758). The prosecutor wrote out Westberry's answers to the questions that he intended to ask at trial (PC-R. 763, 766). The prosecutor then "gave it to Charles Westberry prior to trial, asked him to review it, go over it, make sure what was there was the truth" (PC-R. 757). Westberry was instructed to return the written answers to the prosecutor prior to taking the stand (PC-R. 759). Westberry remained in jail until a week after his testimony (PC-R. 701). In 1988, Westberry testified that he had been given typed answers to read over in preparing to testify at trial (PC-R. 670, 678). still had the documents when he was released from jail, but later was unable to find them (PC-R. 669-70). The existence of these written answers was not disclosed to defense counsel at trial, and the written answers have never surfaced during the post-conviction process (PC-R. 762).

The trial jury also did not hear evidence implicating Henry Jackson and Clayton Strickland in the murder of Ms. Smith. On February 4, 1983, Jackson and Strickland were roommates and lived next door to Charlene Luce (2PC-R. 445, 2611). This was "about a block away" from Ms. Smith's residence (PC-R. 965). On February 4, 1983, Strickland approached Luce and told her that even though Jackson might kill him, he was not scared (2PC-R. 445). Luce then observed Jackson come outside into the yard brandishing a knife in his right hand (2PC-R. 445). The knife was a "pocket knife" with a blade "about three or four inches long" (2PC-R. 2626). Jackson was angry and was demanding money from Strickland (2PC-R. 445).

On February 5, 1983, Wanda Brown, a mail carrier, observed Ms. Smith outside her residence arguing with Strickland

⁵Henry Jackson had previously been convicted of a homicide (2PC-R. 2615-16). Mr. Wright's prosecutor, James Dunning, had represented Jackson when Jackson was prosecuted for the homicide (2PC-R. 2432). Jackson also had a burglary conviction for burglarizing Earl Smith's house, which was across the street from Ms. Smith's house (2PC-R. 2432, 2434-35).

⁶The evidence showed that Ms. Smith was in all likelihood stabbed by a right-handed person (R. 1739, 1816). Mr. Wright is left-handed.

⁷The stab wounds on Ms. Smith were consistent with a pocket knife: "a sharp-edged weapon about, oh, a half-an-inch in width and an eighth of an inch in thickness, and not particularly long" (R. 1822). Between 2:00 and 3:00 p.m. on February 6, 1983, Strickland sold Earl Smith a pocket knife for \$5.00.

and Jackson and motioning for them to move away with her hand (2PC-R. 447, 2558). Strickland then shook his arm at Ms. Smith (2PC-R. 447). When Strickland saw Brown in her postal jeep, he ran in front of the vehicle forcing her to stop (2PC-R. 2559). He walked up to the door of the vehicle and demanded to know if she had his social security check (2PC-R. 2560). She responded, "no, I don't have your check." He said, "I need some money." She told him that she had no mail for the Jackson mailbox (2PC-R. 447). Strickland asked Brown to give him some money (2PC-R. 447). She became frightened by his demeanor and drove away: "I could smell the liquor. And it -- I was kind of scared, you know, I didn't really trust either on of them" (2PC-R. 2560). When she looked back, she noticed Ms. Smith "making a motion like that for them to go off" (2PC-R. 2560). After Brown heard about Ms. Smith's murder, she called the sheriff's office and reported her observations. Two detectives went to her home on February 7, 1983, and took her statement (2PC-R. 2570).8

After dark on the evening of February 5, 1983 (during the period that the medical examiner gave as the range in which the murder occurred), William Bartley observed Jackson and

⁸Prosecutor James Dunning testified in 1988 that this document "should have been given" to defense counsel because it contained information that "may [be] considered [] favorable to the Defense" (PC-R. 724-25).

Strickland standing in the vacant lot next to Ms. Smith's house, drinking (PC-R. 1006-07; 2PC-R. 2431).

Late in the afternoon on February 6, 1983, Kim Holt, a cashier at a local supermarket, saw a man she identified as Jackson in her checkout line. Jackson had fresh scratch marks on his face and "what appeared to be blood on him, fresh blood" (2PC-R. 2583). Holt was familiar with Jackson and the fact that he usually had no money (2PC-R. 444). Jackson announced, "I got money today" (2PC-R. 444). He paid Holt with a one hundred dollar bill and showed her that he possessed another one (2PC-R. 2583). Jackson then asked Holt if she knew that Ms. Smith had been killed (2PC-R. 444, 2583). As he was leaving, Holt noticed that it was 4:30 p.m. (2PC-R. 444).

Between 4:30 and 5:00 p.m., Charlene Luce was called over to her fence by Jackson, who informed her that Ms. Smith had been killed (2PC-R. 2621). When Luce asked, "why her," Jackson said that "Miss Smith told him that she didn't kept [sic] money at home" (2PC-R. 446). He also indicated that Ms.

⁹The medical examiner initially placed the time of Ms. Smith's death between 5:00 p.m. and 9:00 p.m. on Saturday, February 5. However, after Westberry changed his story on April 19 and claimed that Mr. Wright had confessed to committing the murder at 5:00 a.m., the medical examiner expanded the time range to include 5:00 a.m. on Sunday, February 6 (R. 1852).

Smith once gave him a box of chocolates. ¹⁰ Luce asked Jackson if he had killed Ms. Smith. In response, "he just turned real red in the face, and he looked at me real funny, and he turned and walked away" (2PC-R. 2622). Luce gave the sheriff's office a written statement regarding these events on February 9, 1983 (2PC-R. 445). ¹¹

Sheriff officers interviewed Jackson and Strickland on February 10, 1983. According to Jackson, the scratches on his face were from a fight Sunday night (February 6) (PC-R. 378). 12 According to Strickland, he had last seen Ms. Smith on "Tuesday or Wednesday" of the previous week (PC-R. 379). 13 According to Jackson, "we went to bed early" on Saturday, February 5. According to Strickland, "Henry and I had been drinking a lot on Saturday and was pretty high. We went to bed around eight o'clock I guess. I didn't get up until Sunday morning and I

 $^{^{10}\}mathrm{Ms}.$ Smith was found with a chocolate bar on her exposed abdomen (R. 1728).

¹¹Mr. Dunning testified in 1988 that he did not remember whether he had this statement prior to trial, but if he had it, he "[c]ertainly" would have disclosed it to defense counsel (PC-R. 727). In fact, Dunning acknowledged that he would have been obligated to disclose it (Id.).

 $^{^{12}}$ When Kim Holt was interviewed on February 28, she said the scratches were already present at 4:30 p.m.

¹³In her February 7th statement, Wanda Brown had told law enforcement that she had witnesses an encounter between Strickland and Ms. Smith on Saturday, February 5.

made some coffee for Henry and I. Henry and I stayed at the trailer all morning" (PC-R. 379).

In 1988, then deputy Taylor Douglas testified that

Jackson and Strickland were eliminated as suspects when they
each passed a polygraph denying involvement in the murder (PC-R.
964). In 1997, Sheriff Taylor Douglas testified that he knew
"Mr. Wright was" polygraphed, but beyond that he was not sure.
He initially said as to Jackson and Strickland being
polygraphed, "Possibility" (2PC-R. 2520, Douglas Deposition at
35). After refreshing his recollection, he listed those
individuals who were polygraphed: Paul House, Charles Westberry,
Jody Wright and Denise Easter (2PC-R. 2520, Douglas Deposition
at 39). Thus, the sole basis for excluding Jackson and
Strickland as suspects, according to the 1988 testimony, was
revealed to be nonexistent.

No hair was obtained from either Jackson nor

Strickland for forensic comparisons to the hair found on Ms.

Smith's body (PC-R. 1003). No fingerprint comparisons were

conducted between Jackson's and Strickland's known prints and

the unidentified prints of value found at the crime scene (PC-R.

1003; R. 2051). Mr. Wright appealed his convictions and

sentences to this Court. Mr. Wright was represented by Larry

Henderson, an assistant public defender. On May 3, 1984, Mr.

Wright's forty-seven page Initial Brief was filed. The first argument in the brief concerned various rulings by Judge Perry limiting Howard Pearl's cross-examination of four of the witnesses called by the State. The second argument challenged Judge Perry's decision that Howard Pearl could not call Kathy Waters as a defense witness because she had been a spectator in the courtroom when she recalled seeing an individual that could have been Jody Wright on the night of the homicide walking beside the side of the road at the time that Jody Wright testified he was walking along the road on his way to Charles Westberry's house. Ms. Waters also recalled seeing three individuals walking in front of Ms. Smith's house at approximately the same time. The third argument challenged the judge's instruction regarding Williams Rule evidence that was admitted against Mr. Wright. The fourth argument challenged the admission into evidence of Detective Walter Perkins' testimony regarding Mr. Wright's statement announcing he did not wish to speak to Deputy Perkins. The fifth argument challenged the corpus delicti for the grand theft in the second degree conviction. The sixth argument urged that Judge Perry had erred in restricting Howard Pearl's closing argument regarding circumstantial evidence and in refusing to instruct the jury on the law regarding circumstantial evidence. The seventh argument

challenged Judge Perry's finding of the "avoiding arrest" aggravator. The eighth argument challenged Judge Perry's finding of the "cold, calculated and premeditated" aggravator and argued that the finding constituted an impermissible doubling of the "heinous, atrocious or cruel" aggravator. The ninth argument asserted that Sec. 921.141, Fla. Stat., as applied, deprived Mr. Wright of his constitutional right to have the jury of his peers decide the facts at issue in the penalty phase proceeding. The tenth argument alleged that the Florida capital sentencing provisions were unconstitutional on their face and as applied.

On June 21, 1984, after the submission of the Initial Brief, counsel for Mr. Wright filed a motion seeking relinquishment of jurisdiction in order to permit evidentiary development regarding a statement made by a juror to deputy clerk of court. Counsel for Mr. Wright submitted an affidavit from Judith Marks, Deputy Clerk of the Circuit Court, in which Ms. Marks recounted a statement made by Sandra Wilkinson, one of the jurors at Mr. Wright's trial. According to Ms. Marks, she and Ms. Wilkinson discussed "the actions of one of the other jurors, who kept falling asleep during the trial." Ms. Wilkinson then stated "that it was not that the State proved [Mr. Wright] to be quilty, but that the defense did not prove

that he was innocent." On June 28, 1984, this Court denied the motion for relinquishment.

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