## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JOEL DALE WRIGHT,

Case No. SC06-2353

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA

Appellee.

\_\_\_\_\_/

# ON APPEAL FROM THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR PUTNAM COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

# ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

BILL McCOLLUM ATTORNEY GENERAL

BARBARA C. DAVIS ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #410519 444 Seabreeze Blvd., 5th FL Daytona Beach, FL 32118 (386) 238-4990 Fax # (386) 226-0457 COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

####

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

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

CLAIMS I, II, and IV: This is Wright's third motion for postconviction relief. The claims are untimely, procedurally barred, and an abuse of procedure. To avoid the procedural bar, Wright presents two affidavits which he claims are newlydiscovered evidence. The information in these affidavits could have been discovered with due diligence, and are not newly discovered. The Brady/Giglio claims are insufficiently plead. Additionally, he re-argues the Brady/Giglio claims raised in the prior motions which this Court has already held have no merit. two affidavits presented in this third motion The for postconviction relief are not newly discovered evidence. Wright has failed to allege due diligence. He has also failed to allege sufficient facts to show that the newly-discovered hair evidence would have changed the outcome of the trial. The requirements of Jones v. State, 591 So. 2d 911, 916 (Fla. 1991), have not been met. The trial court did not err in summarily denying the successive, procedurally barred, legally insufficient claims which are also conclusively refuted by the record. Because the claims are procedurally barred and insufficiently pled, there is no need to attach sections of the record.

**CLAIM III:** The trial judge did not err in denying additional DNA

testing by an unaccredited laboratory. The trial court's ruling is consistent with Rule 3.853 and this Court's opinion in Swafford v. State, 946 So. 2d 1060 (Fla. 2006).

#### CLAIMS I AND II and IV

# THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN SUMMARILY DENYING WRIGHT'S SECOND SUCCESSIVE RULE 3.850 MOTION BASED ON NEWLY-DISCOVERED EVIDENCE, *BRADY*, AND *GIGLIO*.

<u>Successive motion.</u> This is Wright's third postconviction motion to vacate. The claims regarding the <u>Brady/Giglio</u>/newly discovered evidence of the affidavits of Idus Hughes and Ronald Thomas are untimely, successive and an abuse of procedure. A second or successive motion for postconviction relief can be denied on the ground that it is an abuse of process if there is no reason for failing to raise the issues in the previous motion. <u>Pope v. State</u>, 702 So. 2d 221, 223 (Fla. 1997). There is no reason these claims could not have been raised in the prior postconviction motions and are procedurally barred.

Wright attempts to resurrect these claims by couching them as newly-discovered evidence. This Court has held that a defendant may file successive postconviction relief motions that are based on newly discovered evidence. See <u>White v. State</u>, 664 So. 2d 242, 244 (Fla. 1995). However, in order to overcome the procedural bar, a defendant must show that the newly discovered facts could not have been discovered with due diligence by collateral counsel and raised in an initial rule 3.850 motion. See <u>Id</u>; <u>Owen v. Crosby</u>, 854 So. 2d 182, 187 (Fla. 2003). Wright has made no such showing in this case.

**Evidentiary hearing.** Wright claims he was entitled to an evidentiary hearing on his successive postconviction motion. This Court does not substitute its judgment for that of the trial court on issues of fact when competent, substantial evidence supports the circuit court's factual findings. See, Windom v. State, 886 So. 2d 915, 921 (Fla. 2004).

The record supports summary denial on each issue raised in this point. A defendant is entitled to no relief when his claims legally insufficient, postconviction motion are procedurally barred, or otherwise meritless. Hodges v. State, 885 So. 2d 338, 355 (Fla. 2004); Blanco v. State, 32 Fla. L. Weekly S142 (Fla. Apr. 12, 2007). Wright has made conclusory allegations about the nature of the affidavits and the prejudice. He has also made conclusory allegations regarding the effect of the mtDNA testing on three hairs. Conclusory allegations are legally insufficient on their face and may be denied summarily. Ragsdale v. State, 720 So. 2d 203, 207 (Fla. 1998); Occhicone v. State, 768 So. 2d at 1042; Gorham v. State, 521 So. 2d 1067, 1069 (Fla. 1988).

**Brady/Giglio violation.** In Claim I in this appeal, Wright alleges the affidavits from Idus Hughes and Ronald Thomas establish violations of <u>Brady</u><sup>3</sup> and <u>Giglio</u>.<sup>4</sup> (Initial Brief at 40).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963).

The trial court found:

The Defendant in Claim I argues that the Affidavits submitted from Idus Hughes and Ronald Thomas are either Brady material or are newly discovered evidence. The Affidavits are neither. This is the third Post Conviction Motion filed by Defendant. This material is procedurally barred. In addition, there has been no showing of due diligence to support any claim of newly discovered evidence and no showing of prejudice to meet the required standard for consideration by this Court. Further, the Defendant has not met the heavy burden to show that this material submitted as Claim I, especially in light of the DNA results set out above which show the Defendant to be the person whose semen was in the victim's vagina and anus. Accordingly, Claim II is DENIED.

(R311-312).

To obtain relief under Brady, the defendant must establish:

(1) that the evidence at issue is favorable to him, either because it is exculpatory or because it is impeaching;

(2) that the evidence was suppressed by the State, either willfully or inadvertently; and

(3) that the suppression resulted in prejudice.

Johnson v. State, 921 So. 2d 490, 507 (Fla. 2005).

To establish a Giglio violation, the defendant must show:

(1) the testimony given was false;

(2) the prosecutor knew the testimony was false; and

(3) the statement was material.

Guzman v. State, 868 So. 2d 498, 505 (Fla. 2003).

<sup>4</sup> Giglio v. United States, 405 U.S. 150 (1972).

The only allegation to support the supposed <u>Brady/Giglio</u> violations are outlined in Claim II of the Initial Brief as follows:

[T]he affidavits demonstrate "that the State previously failed to provide the defense with evidence favorable to the defendant".

(Initial Brief at 52). Wright does not allege that the State suppressed this evidence or presented this evidence at any trial or hearing. A critical element of a <u>Brady</u> claim is that the State was in possession of exculpatory evidence and failed to disclose it to the defense. A critical element of a <u>Giglio</u> claim is that the prosecution knowingly presented false testimony. Summary denial was appropriate where the allegations are insufficient to state a claim.

Furthermore, the affidavits on their face show that summary denial was appropriate. Idus Hughes clearly states that he did not talk to any attorney or police officer. (SR33). The first time Idus Hughes told anyone about "seeing Henry" near the victim's residence was when he talked to a defense investigator on August 8, 2003. (SR33-34). Not only has Wright failed to allege the State had knowledge of this witness, but also the affidavit presented shows that Idus Hughes had *no* contact with law enforcement or state attorney before he himself contacted collateral counsel.

Likewise, the affidavit of Ron Thomas fails to allege facts sufficient to require an evidentiary hearing. The first part of the affidavit alleges that he talked to Idus Hughes, who then talked to collateral counsel. Ron Thomas had no information that was imparted to the State prior to 2003. Thomas' assertion that "a detective" at the County jail asked Thomas to "find out what Charles [Westberry] did with the bloody clothes." Thomas claims he tried to talk to Charles about the murder, but Charles refused to talk. (SR38). Thomas claims he then told the detective, back in 1983, that Westberry would not talk to him. Wright claimed in his motion to vacate that this (SR39). evidence demonstrated law enforcement did not accept Westberry's testimony that Wright had blood on his clothes when he arrived at the trailer and emphasized that no bloody clothes were found. (SR17). The allegation that ambiguous evidence about "a detective" who works at the County jail tried to find bloody clothing is exculpatory, is conclusory and does not require an evidentiary hearing. Even if true, the fact the police were trying to find Wright's bloody clothing is hardly exculpatory. Paige Westberry had testified that Charles Westberry told her Wright was covered with blood when he came to the Westberry trailer after he murdered Ms. Smith. Charles Westberry denied the statement at trial. (TT2172). Charles further denied

seeing blood on Wright's shirt. (TT2175). Wright recites facts in his Initial Brief about Paige saying Charles told her Wright was wearing bloody clothing. (Initial Brief at page 2 and page 2, n.3).

There are no record cites to these facts. Paige did not testify to these facts at trial. (TT2472-2476). This claim is built on speculation.

Even if the allegations about "a detective" asking for information from Charles were true, Charles refused to talk. Wright's assertions that the information would have been in any way exculpatory are complete speculation, particularly since Charles Westberry denied any statement about bloody clothes at trial and refused to talk about the case. The allegations are legally insufficient as a *Brady* claim because Wright has failed to show the State was in possession of *exculpatory* evidence, which was suppressed, and which would have a reasonable probability that the jury verdict would have been different had the suppressed information been used at trial. <u>Smith v. State</u>, 931 So. 2d 790, 796 (Fla. 2006) (citing <u>Strickler v. Greene</u>, 527 U.S. 263, 289 (1999)).

Wright has also failed to assert a legally sufficient <u>Giglio</u> claim because he has failed to even allege that the State presented false testimony which might have reasonably changed

the outcome of the case. <u>Guzman v. State</u>, 941 So. 2d 1045, 1050 (Fla. 2006). The testimony the State presented from Charles Westberry was that Wright did *not* have on bloody clothing when he came to the trailer after killing Miss Smith.

Summary denial was appropriate. <u>See Tompkins v. State</u>, 872 So. 2d 230, 241 (Fla. 2003)(affirming the trial court's summary denial of <u>Brady</u> claims where "either the undisclosed documents are not <u>Brady</u> material because they are neither favorable to Tompkins nor suppressed, or Tompkins has not demonstrated that he was prejudiced by the lack of disclosure").

As this Court stated in Wright III:

The mere possibility that undisclosed items of information may have been helpful to the defense in investigation its own does not establish constitutional materiality. See United States v. Agurs, 427 U.S. 97, 109-10, 49 L. Ed. 2d 342, 96 S. Ct. 2392 (1976); Gorham v. State, 521 So. 2d 1067, 1069. The fact of other criminal activities and the existence of other criminals in the same neighborhood where this murder occurred does not affect the quilt or punishment of this defendant.

We agree with the trial court's determination that the exculpatory effect of the documents is merely speculative; therefore, we affirm the trial court's denial of relief on this issue. Wright III at 870.

**Newly Discovered Evidence**. In Claims I and II, Wright alleges that the affidavits of Idus Hughes and Ronald Thomas are newlydiscovered evidence. (Initial Brief at 40). Alternatively, Wright claims trial counsel was ineffective for failing to discover this evidence, i.e. that this evidence existed at the time of trial. (Initial Brief at 40). These claims are inconsistent facially and speculative.

This Court succinctly set forth the standard for newlydiscovered evidence in Wright III.

In order to qualify as newly discovered evidence, the evidence "must have been unknown by the trial court, by the party, or by counsel at the time of trial, and it must appear that defendant or his counsel could not have known them by the use of diligence." <u>Jones v.</u> <u>State</u>, 591 So. 2d 911, 916 (Fla. 1991) (quoting Hallman v. State, 371 So. 2d 482, 485 (Fla. 1979)). If this test is met, the court must next consider whether the newly discovered evidence is of such a nature as to probably produce an acquittal on retrial. Id. at 915. Additionally, we have said that newly discovered evidence that existed but was unknown at the time of the prior proceedings. See Porter v. State, 653 So. 2d 374, 380 (Fla. 1995).

<u>Wright III</u> at 870-871. Idus Hughes lived "a half-mile down the road" from the victim. (SR10). Wright makes no allegation he could not have obtained this information with due diligence. He simply states that the information was not provided until 2003. If the information did not exist until 2003, it is not newly discovered under <u>Jones</u> because it did not exist at the time of trial. If the evidence did exist at the time of trial, Wright failed to allege or establish due diligence in failing to discover an available neighborhood witness for 20 years.

Furthermore, under the <u>Jones</u> standard, the evidence would not produce an acquittal on retrial. As this Court found on direct appeal:

The record already contained unrefuted testimony that three individuals were gathered near the victim's home.

Wright I at 1280.

Henry Jackson, the subject of the "new" evidence from Idus Hughes, was also the subject of a newly-discovered evidence

# claim in Wright III:

After his first postconviction proceeding in 1988, Wright made public records requests from which he numerous documents. The first received set of in 1991 documents produced included police investigation reports regarding criminal activity in the neighborhood of the murder. Wright asserts that these reports demonstrate that the police did not adequately investigate other potential suspects, including Henry Jackson. A second set of documents was produced in 1996 and 1997. These documents, Wright argues, demonstrate failures and inadequacies of the investigation and demonstrate that the police investigating officer was dishonest. Wright also draws an inference from the lack of documents which, he if arques, would exist the police adequately considered other suspects. The documents Wright lists his claim include Jackson's criminal history, in neighbors' complaints to police about Jackson, and police reports involving other known criminals in the neighborhood which involve events completely unrelated to those in this case. All of this information, he alleges, is Brady evidence and entitles him to a new trial.

. . . . .

However, even if the State should have disclosed the evidence, Wright has not demonstrated prejudice by the failure to do so. In order to be entitled to relief on a Brady claim, the defendant must also show that the

"is material either to evidence quilt or to punishment, irrespective of the good faith or bad faith of the prosecution." Gorham v. State, 521 So. 2d 1067, 1069 (Fla. 1988). There has been no such showing in the instant case. The mere possibility that undisclosed items of information may have been helpful to the defense in its own investigation does not establish constitutional materiality. See United States v. Agurs, 427 U.S. 97, 109-10, 49 L. Ed. 2d 342, 96 S. Ct. 2392 (1976); Gorham v. State, 521 So. 2d 1067, 1069. The fact of other criminal activities and the existence of other criminals in the same neighborhood where this murder occurred does not affect the quilt or punishment of this defendant. We agree with the trial court's determination that the exculpatory effect of the documents is merely speculative.

Wright III at 869-870. (Emphasis supplied)

This Court further addressed Henry Jackson in the newly-

discovered evidence section in Wright III:

Wright claims that evidence produced as the result of the public records requests made after the first postconviction motion constitutes newly discovered evidence of innocence and requires a new trial. In order to qualify as newly discovered evidence, the evidence "must have been unknown by the trial court, by the party, or by counsel at the time of trial, and it must appear that defendant or his counsel could not have known them by the use of diligence." Jones v. State, 591 So. 2d 911, 916 (Fla. 1991) (quoting Hallman v. State, 371 So. 2d 482, 485 (Fla. 1979)). If this test is met, the court must next consider whether the newly discovered evidence is of such a nature as to probably produce an acquittal on retrial. Id. at 915. Additionally, we have said that newly discovered evidence, by its very nature, is evidence that existed but was unknown at the time of the prior proceedings. See Porter v. State, 653 So. 2d 374, 380 (Fla. 1995).

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